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NRIS Reference Number: 92000337 Date Listed: 04/20/92
District No. 1 Schoolhouse Windham VT
Property Name County State
N/A

Multiple Name

This property is listed in the National Register of Historic Places in accordance
with the attached nomination documentation subject to the following exceptions,
exclusions, or amendments, notwithstanding the National Park Service
certification included in the nomination documentation.

oo /G2

Daté of Aétion

Amended Items in Nomination:

8. Statement of Significance: Period of Significance & Significant Dates

The period of significance and the significant date(s) are the same in this
case: ¢.1850.

DISTRIBUTION:
National Register property file
Nominating Authority (without attachment)
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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations of eligibility for individual properties or districts. See instructions in Guidelines
for Completing National Register Forms (National Register Bulletin 16). Complete each item by marking “x’’ in the appropriate box or by entering
the requested information. If an item does not apply to the property being documented, enter ““N/A’" for ‘‘not applicable.” For functions, styles, materials,
and areas of significance, enter only the categories and subcategories listed in the instructions. For addmonal space use commuahon sheets
(Form 10-800a). Type all entries.

1. Name of Property

historic name DISTRICT NO. 1 SCHOOLHOQUSE
other names/site number N/A

2. Location

street & number Somerset Road N /Al not for publication
city, town Somerset ) N £ Al vicinity
state  Vermont code VT county Windham code 025 zip code N/A
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
[ private building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
[] public-local [ district 1 buildings
[ ] pubtic-State [Isite sites
[x] public-Federal [ ]structure structures

[ ] object objects

1 Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

A[ﬁye designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
omination D request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my W the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

Signature of cemfymg official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau,/

_,/
In r{y opinion, the %{)en)l/g‘w does not meet the National Register criteria. [Isee continuation s eet
La1" v {/——?““m / ' 4 / / L

Signature of commenting or other official Date
Vermont State Historic Preservation Officer
State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification

W certify that this property is:
entered in the National Register. g{ 7 Z (/ ég i:
[:l See continuation sheet. a - B! 4/ ’(20 - %
[ determined eligible for the National 4
Register. E] See continuation sheet.

Ddetermined not eligible for the
National Register.

[ removed from the National Register.
[ Jother, (explain:)

a‘"’ Signature of the Keeper Date of Action



6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions)

Education - schoolhouse

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Vacant/Not in Use

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

Other: one-room schoolhouse

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

foundation ___sTone

walls weatherboard
roof metal
other © brick

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

(Entire text appears on continuation sheets.)

E{]See continuation sheet



8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
[ Inationally [ statewide [iocally

Applicable National Register Criteria [_JA [_]B [x]c []D
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) |:]A DB DC D D DE |:| F [:lG

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture N/A c.1850

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/ZA Unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

(Entire text appears on continuation sheets.)

See continuation sheet



9. Major Bibliographical References

(Entire text appears on continuation sheet.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

Dpreliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67)
has been requested

[:]previousw listed in the National Register

[ previously determined eligible by the National Register

[:]designated a National Historic Landmark

[lrecorded by Historic American Buildings
Survey #

[:Irecorded by Historic American Engineering
Pecord #

[x] see continuation sheet

Primary location of additional data:
[:]State historic preservation office
DOther State agency
Federal agency
Local government

[_university
[ lother
Specify repository:

GMNF Supervisor's Office,.

Rutland, Vermont

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of property ___approximately 0,25 acre

UTM References
Al1,8| |6]6,44,4,0 [4,75,8[26,0]
Zone Easting MNorthing

clod Ll by v bl by by

B[_l__l [ I T I T O

Zone  Easting Northing

b b b b Ly

I:lSee continuation sheet

- Verbal Boundary Description

See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

[x]see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

nameltitie Hugh H. Henry

organization __Historic Preservation Consultant

date __ _March 1990

street & number __Green Mountain Turnpike

telephone ___802-875-3379

city or town Chester

state __Vermont zip code 05143~
9418



NPS Form 10-800-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018
(8-8¢)

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __7____  Page

Surrounded ky abandoned farmland now reverting to mixzzd forest,
the District MHo. 1 Schoclhouse is located in the southwest
guzdrant of thsz unorganized and mostly forested Somerset township
cn a2 tract c¢f land within ths Green ldountain National Forest.
Thz single-story, two—by—*ﬂo—ba« clapboarded, vsinacularvr
building carviess a metal-sheathed gable roof. The main gable
facade possesses an unshelitered entrances while the othesr facades
arzs licghtsd by two-ovar—two gash, all with plain surrounds. Ths
in o1 contains a single formar classroom finished w7ith
7ain 2tindg, pvlaster-over-lath, and plvwood. The schoolhouse
re s to 2 relatively high degres its integrity of location,
se g, dasign, materials, workmanship, feeling, and
as ation.
The Diztrict o. 1 Schoollhicuss stands closely adjacsni, and
oriented psrpendicular, to thes szast sids of the gravsl Somsrsst
Rcad on a cgently sloping site. A small grassy opsening liss next
to thz north side of the building. HMixed deciduous and
ccnifsrous a2es or medium height now closely surround the south
and zazt = . Ths resgensrating forest also flanls the opposits
{(wzzt) zid f the road.
twe—by—-two-bay building extends 13.5 feet in
7idth and 24.5 feszt in east-west length. Tha
rests on moriared concrete-block piesrs at the foux
half—way along the north and south sidzss. The pisrs
s concealad Hy fieldstOLe piled loosely to provide a
12 h one skirt tapesrs
{znst) facads of
Th= piers and
the original

¢ possessaes a rough-sawn, post—-and-besam £

r

rior walls with clapboards stoppad by »lain

=z. The gable rocf of moderatse pitch is now coverad
TIL ng—szam shzst mztal; the criginal rooi covering was
o od shingles. A projscting boxz cornice without gabls
re lowrs both thz horizontal and the F“ont raling eavas
bu r raking eaves are clo intzrior brick
chimn 2s from the rear (east
The main {west) gable facade possssses a single bary, ofifisst to
ths lsit o center, occupiad by the only entrance into tha
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building. The eantrance ig fitted with a six-panzsl door and
znframad by 2 rlain surround. The front of the building rests
1y at gx 1 m tin he nzed for entry steps
diataly ner of ths entrance, a small
re pansl opening (now covaresd) of
ST purD
The identical north and socuth saves facades are arranged with &t
bave of window openings placaed in west-central and esastern
pozitionz, : zcting the interior position of ths singls
classroom. The windows are fitted with two-over—-two sash, and
thzir plain zurrounds abut thes horizontal cornic=s. The 3ash are
now concealed and protectad by vertical-boarded, hingsd shuttzsyrs.
Thz Tear (zast) gabls facade is arranged with two =venly spaced
bays 0f window openings. The two—over—two sash are also
concealasd bshind vertical-bhoarded szhutters.
Thz int he building contains the single former classrooxn
occunyi ¥ threge-guarters of the floor plan. The front
entrance to @& shallow rectangular room whose walls lack
f£inish zhe ¢, lezving =xposed the building's post-and-ba2am
framing on the west and south sides; this room was uszd probably
£ thz ztorage of fuel wood. Adjeoining the north side of this
room but sntered only from the classroom, a small sguare
clozakroom occupias the northwest corner of the interlor; 1its
w72lls zre finished entirely with plaster-over-lath.
The clazzroem consists simply of a plain rectangular room now
lachking nmuch =2videncz of its original purpose and somewhat
al v the partial raplacement of its original sheathing
na ~1lz. Tlainscoting of narrow vertical boards rsaches
Wi w—=5111 level on the v front), north, and =ast walls.
Thz upper wa2ll surfacss inished with »lastsr-over—-lath on
tha north and =zast gides e room while those on the west and
south have bes2n covered = plywood (excepiing = ssction of
plazter—-ove: h betwesn t© doors on the west wall). The
plywocd wainscoting on the south wall.
Thes £icor Zcards have bzzn removed from the scuth half of ths
classroom, 2xposing the rough-sawn timber joists. The remaining
flcor ccnsists mostly of the dimension boards in the undevlayzsr;
the f£inish matched boards have been almost entirely removad. Thse
cziling has been entirely sheathed with plywood.
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The door and window openings are enframed by plain surrounds.
four-panel door now leans against the north wall of tha
classroom, apparently removed from the doorway leading to the
exterior entrance. The doorway from the classroom into the
cloziiroom appears never to have had a door.

Centered between the windows and abutting the east wall, the
exposed brick stovz chimney begins about six fest from thes £

loor.
A narrow stack of wood shelves rises from the floor to support
the chimnzy. (The stove has been removed, lzaving the building

without means of being heated.) The building lacks both eslectric
wiring and plumbing, and therefore has escaped the modifications

relating to the installation of those services.

The present appearance of thes classroom interior reflects a
partial rehabilitation of the building undertaken in 1964 but
nevaer completed. The concrete-block piers were installed in
place of the original fieldstone foundation, and the deteriorated
woed 3ills and floor framing were partly replaced. The partial
plvwood sheathing was applied to the interior walls and ceiling.
The pressnt two-over—-two window sash appear to have repnlaced the
original sash, although the period of that changes is unknown.
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The District No. 1 Schoolhouse holds significance for embodying
the distinctive characteristics of a type of vernacular building,
a ona-room schoolhouse constructed during the middle nineteenth
century for a small rural school district. Unlike most of its
countarparts 2lsewhere in Vsrmont, the Somerset schoolhouss was
never altered by the installation of twentieth-century
improvements such as bank windows or plumbing, and therefore
retains a higher degree of architectural integrity. The District
No. 1 Schoolhouse represents the entire period of active
settlemaent and public education in the isolated mountain township
of Somerset. It has now become probablv the only extant historic
building in one of the few Vermont townships that have been
devopulated and legislatively disestablished during the twentieth
century.

Such modest school buildings were common in the rural towns of
Vermont during the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries.
Each township was subdivided into multiple school districts,
tyvpically from ten to twenty in number. The school buildings
were constructed at locations of relatively convenient access for
the ressidents of the districts, often a central crossroads.
Several grades were taught by one teacher in the single room, and
the equipment was generally rudimentary. Most of these
schoolhouses, however, have been supplanted during the present
century by larger consolidated schools in the village and town
centars. TFurthermore, the large majority of the surviving one-

room schoolhouses have been converted to residential and other
uses, commonly bsing substantially altered during the process.

|.|
n
[
I_.l .
(9}
ct

t Ho. 1 Schoolhouse ranks among the few virtuzlly

‘2d examples of one-room district schoolhouses extant in
te. In 1904, the state Board of Health undertool to
e@stablish standards for public schools relating to sanitation,
ventilation, and lighting. The requirements for lighting brought
about the installation of banks of windows in nearly all school
buildings in Vermont. Somerset township, however, was then
declining in population toward the point of being officially
disestablished, and substantial improvements in its two
schoolhouses were probably considered unnecessary. The District
No. 1 Schoolhouse, therefore, never received the banks of windows
that became a conspicuous feature of most other schools in the
state. Furthermore, it was never modified on the interior by the
installation of electric wiring and plumbing.
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rset township was grantad by Gov. Ba2nning
7 wshire on September 9, 1761 to a group of 62
27, i1f any, of the grantees wars probably awars of ths
e 2 nature of their s1:—m11a— guare, 23,040-acre tract
1 ng the ilain Rangz of the Green Mountains. & major
ot i ridge, culminating in the 3556~foot summit of iHount
Pisgah, traverses the esastern porticn of ths original tract.
That wmountain ridge sifectivsly divided the township into a
band of relatively accassibls land along ths zastern
(zdjoining Dover township) and a larger portion lying in
10 2000-foot-high basin drainasd by the East and "est
£ the Deerfield Rivsr on the west sides of the Pisgzh
Uriting in 1812, Zadocl Thompson aptly described the
circumstances prevailing in Somsrset eighty vezrs after ths
granting o its chartsr: "The township is but littls zsttlzd,
and is vary mountainous." At that point in time, there were
thirze gzchoolhouses, a mestinghouse, and four sawmills within its
hordsrs. Ths 1840 census recordaed a population of 262, but
mc3t lived in the narvow strip of the township lying east of ths
mountain.
Scm: ents wers engadsd in the usual agricultural
act 2 pariod, keeping a limited number of livestock
and s1in cater variety o crops although fzvoring those
that uld thstand the short growing seasocn. Corresponding to
. et pattzrn in most Varmont towns, thz 426 sheep in
=2 most numerous livestock althocugh they barsly
421 cattls. The production of figld cxons 1S
tatoes at 92,930 bushels and oats =zt 1,521 bushels
7 tons of hav Aside from the field crops, maple
sugay ras ot nost important vproduct of Somerset's farms, with
5,440 pounds being made in 1840. That amount greatly excesded
thz guantity of wool, only 993 pounds.
t expandad in the western portion of the tovnship
2 1830s despite its relatively harsh conditions. Ths
- ~toolk to build znd improve roads there, and school
izt sz were organized to provide public sducaticn. By 1340, =2
"South ezt School Disgtrict" smiszted in the arsa ¢ ths prsasanc
sxztant schocolhouse, and ten "schollars" betwesn ths ages of u
ind cightecn livad in that district. The nuuwbesy of "schollars"”
in that had bszcomz School District No. 5 incrzassd to sizteen in
1842, and =chool was conducted during sizteen weels of ths year.
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Thz Femalse Tzachsr was paid £12.00 for the term, a
{(probably rith a family reciding in the distyict)
additicnal 812.00. The school district received §
Blic money" from the toun, and the balance of 3
isecd by the district residsnts. A total of 102
endsd Somers=t's five district schools that yesa
In 1348, the Prudential Ccommittes of District ilo.
Mehemiah Spraguz, Jr. a lot of 30 by 30 feet "with
orivils cf zntering upon the sams at any tinme &
Zor th:z purposae of building, occupyving & repairinag
5o long a3 the said district shall want the sams £
and us £ & Disztrict Schoolhous2." The location
i: catez that this refzars to what later bescams Che
1 hoolhousa. Ths e:xitant schoolhouss was apparen
around 1350.
ner building was apparsntly needad to accommod
asing numbzr of children in District Ilo. &.
ded zcheol in 1849, and the term had lengthen
stazlizs.  Tha femals teacher was paid $44.00, a
; oarding for $25.00. The wood used to he
coszt $5.00, bringing the total =xpenses of the scho
to 375.00. Ths diztrict czived $831.14 from the
raizzd tha balance of §42.85 2ltogether thers w2
oz 2t thet year, and :the town distributed £1
ool distyricts.
or to 18b2, Somersst town meetings were held on
thea mountain. 4t that vear's regular meeting,
idzd "to hold the town meetings one—-half of the
schoolhouse near the Hack Bridgs so-callzd,"” =
grashical center ol i t ip he west si
nTtain. Thzt "nsw s h pPparently 1
v i mill pond on
the
Dzzpitse its emzistencs during
District Ifo. 5 ras "organizad s 1
at the diztrict'zs scheolhouss resent T
seting ted "to have si:z wmonths school this szas
3 sw ¥ and 2 moniths wintsr." They also dascid
p st cof Septembesr thz tvwo cords of fire wo
: ing, "szach person sending schollars
proportion of said wood." Tuo vs=

nd her boarding
cost an
10.12 in
13.87 was
students
.
5 lesased from
ths full
2t all tim
a schoolhous=
or the purposs
of the lot
z District lo.
tly built
atz ths
Trentv-nine
zd to twenty-
nd she wras
at the building
¢l for th=

WS ey oo 8

tomn, and
2 118 stu
05.24 to the
the esazt sids
thz voters
time at the
zayr ths
d= of ths=
occzatad in what
the East Branch

unsa
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: months
=d Lo procur:s
od rs & to
[3ic] ha ¢ a
ars later, in
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1856, it was voted to have ten weeks of school that summer and
the same number the following winter. The summer semester bsgan
on the first Monday in June and the winter semester the first
Monday after Thanksgiving. The starting date of the summer
semester was chosen to avoid the muddy roads and poor travel

conditions that usuzlly accompanied the spring thaw.

The relative difficulties of settlement in the east and west
portions of the original Somerset township are clearly reflectad
in the pattern shown on the lMcClellan map of 1856. The
township's povpulation exceeded 300 in 1850 but most of this total
lived in the narrow eastern strip, where numerous residsnces
lined the primary north-south road. By contras:t, there were only
about a dozen residences scattered through the entire area west
of what was then called Somerset Mountain (later iount Pisgah).
The name "Texas" appears on the map between the East and Vest
Branches of the Deerfield River, a name that suggests the remots
and wild character of the territory. Three schoolhouses are
shown there, including one on the site of the presently extant
building. Another of the schoolhouses (apparently the one used
for fown meetings) stood southwest of the pond in the Fast Branch
where two sawmills then flanked the river; the road over the
mountain crossed the river at that point.

The topodgraphical division of the township undoubtedly caused
many practical problems in both public and private affairs.
Although a road existed over the mountain, it must have besan
virtuzally impassible during pvarts of the year. That would have
requiraed a lengthy detour around the mountains through Searsburg
and Yilmington townships to the south. The east-side residents
werzs more directly involved, both sconomically and scocially, with
the adjoining townships of Dover and Wardsboro and agitated for
annaxation to them. Dovexr, however, refused repeatedly to accept
the transfer of Somerset territory.

In response to the problem, the Vermont Legislature acted

in 1858 to divide Somerset township roughly along the mountain
ridge. The northern third (two miles in length) of ths eastern
strip was annexsed to Wardsboro while the southern two-thirds
(four miles) was transferred to Wilmington adjoining at the
narrow south end rather than the unwilling Dover on the longer

east side. (This jllogical arrangement lasted only until 1869
wwhen Dover finally accepted what had become known as the
"Tilmington Leag" or "The Handle".) The area of Somersest was

thareby reduced to 18,304 acres.
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of the townshin
lowed in 1259 by
T7o new districts
previous District
of Districts ilo.

c
District Mo. 1.

Thz Dzeys mzp of 186¢ shows the two new school di ctsz i
ted Som i n lving wholly west of mountc
strict orresponded to the weazst cf ths
and Cisztyrict Mo. 2 to the ea 1 of & arsza. Ths
{19¢0) =sxztant schoclhouse occupizs ths site of ths
c. 1 = on the map, beside the singls nor
i cazzi th ths district. There wzrzs than not
1dingsz o 3 {esast) side of the road. On ths
& reasidan was situated nzarly oppositz the school
hers warse caczd within a half-mile (2nly foundatiocns
To mark their szites). About ons and cnz2-half nilszs <o
a small up of buildings including a 111 and a2
str led the road next to a milil {latexr
2 o he Tudor mill) i il .
n Disgtrict Ho. 1, 1
e o
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13 ¢g; in 18221, according to Child's cocunt
i s located in Town's houss, "thers bzing no
in township worth of the titls of willags."
t's small population, Town alsce ssrved 23 ths
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o ovmning & 220-acre farm.) The post ofifics
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in Vermont: The 1880 census recorded only 67 residents in
Somerset. The number declined to 61 in 1890; a dscade later, at
the turn of the century, it returned to 67.

Among the 67 or so0 residents, there were only sixteen students
attending the two common schools in 1882. Two female teachers
were emploved, and the town contributed $87.00 to the districts
for operating the schools. The residents of District No. 1
raisad $50.00 that wvesar to support their school. Jason V. Rice,
a local farmer, was then Somerset's superintendent of schools.
Rice alzo served in the vositions of town lister, grand Jjuror,
and justice of the peace. The small total number oif students
indicates either that the population in District No. 1 had
decreased or that the number of school-age children had declined
(the former secems more likely). The expense of operating the
school fell on a similarly small number of tax-paying residents,
and the voters at the District No. 1 annual meetings during the
1860s and 1870s declined repeatedly to provide money for
"repairing the schoolhouse.

After the reduction of Somerset's territory to the mountain

basin, lumbering became the predominant sconomic activity in the
township. Child's gazettear vrecords that three sawmills were
then (1884) operating in the township and producing substantial
cguantities of lumber. The largest mill was constructed in 1881
and operated by Frank D. Chase, who owned 2,000 acrss of
forestland to supply the mill and a contiguous chair-stock
factory. Chase's water-powered mill was located at the pond on
the Bazt Branch in District No. 2, and produced som= 300,000 feet
of lumber apd a "large amountct of chair-stock”™ per year. Two
other sawmills were located south of the District HNo. 1
schoclhouse on the Vest Branch of the Deerfield River. Both
produced about 250,000 fzst of lumber annually; one was built by

Hollis Town and the other was then (1884) leased by William and
John Tudor.

During the late nineteenth century, the timber industry in
Vermont underwant marked exzpansion in the scale of opzarations and
significant changes in technology, eswpecially means of transport.

Thz small mills at sites within the forest were gensrally
supplantaed and eventually abandoned in favor of larger mills near
villages or towns. These mills were linked to the sources of
timber by logging railroads and improved roads that made possible
the =2fficient movement of large volumes of timber.
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al river through District ilo. 1 bzfore turning
noxw ard to reach into the northern half of District lo.
Ancthey branch line turned away from the ¥West Branch line and
Ecllctred the Rake Branch (river) into the southwestern cornﬁ“
the tovmship. The rzilroad hauled eight million fzet of
per yzar at 1its paak. (Some pulpwood continued to be float
dorm the river until 1918.)
Thz sescond decade 0of the twentieth century brought an =nti
di rent kind of large-scale davelopment to Somerset that
phrcsically displacsd the ninetesnth-century District Mo. 2
szttlen=ant. The New England Powsr Co. undertool intensivs
zlcctric devzlopment of ths Deerfield River along its =zntix
1 th in Varmont and Hassachusatts, baginning with an expa
s zs2rvolir on the East Branch in the Somsrsst basin.
mazzive zarth-f£illed dam was constructed in 1912-13 nearly
sitzs of the dam at vwhat was then called Peck's Mil1l; all of
buildings in the surrounding settlement were removad. The
gztends 2100 feet in l=ngth and 104 feet in mazzimum height,
600 f£z=2t wids at the bass and 20 fe=2t at the crsszt. It imp
a reserveir with a surfacs area of 1623 acres and a langth
fivs mwiles extending into Stratton township on ths north an
The reservoilr has a ztorage capacity of 57,346 acre-feet of
to supply the ssven generziting stations that have been
constructzsd downstream along the river.
Tha 21d River Railroad bzsnefited temporarily £from the
orod The railroad haulzd most of the sarth £fill us=d in
conz tion, and thereby bzcame financially profitable for
onl: ricd of itz tizte . After thes dam was complztzd,
tracl v7az laid zlong its crest and several connecting spur
rers built to hzaul logs from the forasst covering ths northe
part o Somerssast township. Thz natworlk of active trackags
rzacshed 1tz maximum extsnt of 29.5 miles during thes p=riod
15. (2 total of 41 miles of line was constructed during th
railrcad’zs Eiftsen-year sxistence.)
Thz 1910 census recorded a 45 per cent drop in Somsrsat's
pepulation, to 27, during the first decade of this cantury.
abrupt raduction may relate to the virtual elimination of
ent in half of Somsrsst township that occurrsd when
cmpany purchased ths land for the huge reservoi:
its causs, the reducticn in population %to that lev
2d the efficacy of maintaining a Somerset rost offi
22 ¢closad in 1916. The permanent residsnts wars va
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o} temporary population of loggsrs living in the
c roughout ths township; in 1916, thsrese wesre come
3 & ¢ in the woods. The lumber company ownad a
£ southwest of the District Mo. 1 schoolhouss to supply
vegatables for the loggers and hay for the multituds of horsss
us=d to shkid logs.
Tha devzlopment of large-scals hydroelectric facilitizs along ths
icld Riveasr expandad in the =zarly 1920s, soon disgplacing
z logging rallroad and the pulp and sawmills that it
splia 4. In 1920-21, a subsidiary of the MNew England Powesr Co.
acguired ths HMountain Mills complzax and the f£lowrage rights along
T river. The raillroad was truncated to fiva miles of line
do rzam of another dam znd storage reservolr constructed in
Sz and its owperation ceased in 1921. Thz pulp mill was
cl 923 and its sguivmant was removed. Concurrzsntly
an z dam {(the highsst sarth-£fill dam in thz world at the
T ing constructsed at Whitingham, some siz miles
dos £ Hountain Mills. Its gatess were closed in April,
192 Dearfleld River valley was soon transformed into a
1=k s Harriman Reservoir resaching nearly to Wilmington
vil wning the Meountzin Mills ssttlement and the need for
tha 1d River Railroad.
he rama omerget zzttlement in District Mo. 1 declined to
ami ring the 1920s and 1930s, when farm abandonment
cen preszion brought about the depopulztion of so-
d h ns throughout Vzrmont. John H. Tavlcr cams to ths
hip 0 to zerve as carstaker of Somerset Dam. Hz and
ifa E., owmed a farm [(with a "largs herd of cattls")
north ¢f the District Mo. 1 scheolhousz. Katie
tly thez last person to teach in the schoolhousz
i logad probably by 1930 (when Somersst’
ctaz only 20), and the f2w remaining studsnts weare
1w taught zat the Taylor rzsidencs. The last town
1d =zt the Town Hall (probably the District o. 2
2) was in 1925, and the subseguent mestings were
2 Town Clerk's Office -~ presumably the residence of
as Town Clerk afteyxy 1925. The Taylors also
othery town offices in what had bzcoms
fiefdom.
szrved as representative to ths
a2l Assembl . Hzr vigorous
3 insuffic g officizal
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disestablishment of the township by the Legislature in 1937. The
final Somerset town meeting was held on November 24th of that
vear. The check list of voters for the 1936 general election
recorded seven names, and however many came to that special
meeting unanimously approved the expenditure of $1,500 to "buy a
gasoline shovel for use on the town roads." (There were then
only 6.1 miles being maintained.) The record of the meeting does
not mention the impending demise of the organized township.

Three ysars latsr, the census of 1940 found only five residents
left in Somerset. The Taylors had moved to Massachusetts after
John was convicted in Windham County Court of cruelty to their
thres adopted sons.

Most of the land in Somerset that had been cleared during the
nineteenth century for settlement and agriculture was reverting
to forest by the 1930s. 1In 1933, the United States Congress
established the Green Mountain National Forest along the
mountainous spine of Vermont. The entire Somerset township lies
within the authorized boundarv for Federal acquisition of land.
Since 1933, a substantial portion of the township has been
purchased for addition to the National Forest; the tract of land
including the District No. 1 schoolhouse was acquired in 1950.
The United States Forest Service administers the forast and
manages the natural and cultural resources that exist within it.

In 1964, the Forest Service undertook a project to rehabilitate
the =zchoolhouse. Its stone foundation and deterioratsd wood
sills were replaced, the foundation being rebuilt with concrete-
block piers screened by unmortared fieldstone. The classroom's
walls and ceiling were mostly sheathed with plywood. However,
owing wpartly to insufficient funding, the work was never
completed and the building has subseqguently remained unused.

The number of historic buildings in Somerset has declined
steadily during the twentieth century. Indeed, the District No.
1 schoolhouse may now (1990) hold the distinction of being the
only surviving building constructed prior to 1940 within the
post-1859 limits of the township. The small number of other
buildings in Somerset consists predominantly of seasonal camps
unrelatzsd to the earlier sesttlement. Now awaiting further
rehabilitation and possible adaptive use by the Forest Sesrvice,
the District No. 1 schoolhouse provides the last link to ths
historic architecture of a virtually extinct Vermont hill-town.
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BOUIIDARY DESCRIPTION

Thz property being nominatsed consists of the District HNo. 1
Schoclhouse and a small surrounding parcel of land adjoining ths
2ast side of the Somerset Road within the Green lMountain MNational
Forest. The boundary begins at a Point A located in the east
edga of the right-of-way of said road at its intersection with a
line fifty (50) feet north of, and parallel to, thz north facade
of thes schoolhouse. Thence the boundary extends southward along
the east adge of said right-of-way to Point B lccated at its
intersection with a line fifty (50) feet south of, and wnarallel
o, the south facade of the schoolhouse. Thencs the boundary
turns zastirard and follows zaid south line to Point € locataed at
its interssction with the west bank of a small breook flowing
along a generally north-south course a short distance 2ast of the
schoolhouse. Thence the boundary turns northward and follows the
west banli of said brook to Point D located at its intzsrssction
with a line f£ifty (50) fest north of, and parallsl to, thsz noirth
facade of the schoolhouse. Thence ths boundary turns westward
and f£ollows said north line to Point A, the point of beginning.

BOUIDARY JUSTIFICATION

The houndary of the District Mo. 1 Schoolhouse property

enconpasses the schoolhouss and its original leased lot th
extendad only slightly beyvond the footprint of the buildin
In 1950, that lot together with a much larger tract of land wias
Federal ownership as part of the Grzen lountain
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Thz following information repeats for all photogranhs:
District HNo. 1 Schoolhouse
Somsrset, Vermont
Cradit: Hugh H. Henry
Date: Septembzr 1989
Megative filed at Vermont Division for Historic Presservation
Photooranh 1
Setting 9oL schoolhouse along road, showing main (wast) and south
facades; view looking northeast.

and south facades; view looking northeast.

main (west) facades; view looking southzast.

Photograph £
Rear (=zast) facade; view looking northwest.



